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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL{IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Scottsville is situated on the north bank of the James River, at the renowned Horseshoe
Bend, in Albemarle County, with a small section in Fluvanna County. The village is
roughly L-shaped in plan, with the two major streets-~Main Street paralleling the river
and Valley Street running north up a ravine toward Charlottesville--meeting at an obllqué
angle in the center of town. It is at the apex of this angle and extending along Valley
and Main Streets from it that the prlnc1pal commerc1al bulldlngs of Scottsville are
located.

By virtue of its position on the James River and of its originally having been the county
seat of Albemarle County, Scottsville has always been an important point on one of the
main routes of east-west traffic in Virginia. The James River and Kanawha Canal once
passed through the village along the riverbank, The canal and its turning basin are now
filled, the Chesapeake and Ohio Railroad hav1ng supplanted it, Wlth its tracks occupylng
the old towpath : S :

The earliest surviving buildings in Scottsville, built late in the eighteenth and early
in the nineteenth centuries, are concentrated along Main Street, near the canal and rail-
road routes and on the road from Richmond. These include the 0ld Tavern; the Barclay
House; a number of small cottages, some possessing very fine architectural detail; and

a number of early frame warehouses and other commercial buildings,.

As the village expanded, more substantial structures-~brick rows of combined commercial
and residential buildings--were built along Valley Street. On the hill behind these,

s running parallel to Valley Street, is Harrison Street. Built here, in the second quarter
of the nineteenth century, are the finest of Scottsville's private dwellings, houses
such as 0ld Hall and the Bruce House, Where the houses along Main Street were pre-
dominantly frame and predominately a story and a half high, most of the houses along
Harrison Street are two-story brick structures, Harrison Street is also the location of’
three of the town's five early churches--housing the Presbyterian, Baptist, and Episcopal
congregations. ' '

The large mill built on Valley Street at the north end of the busxness district dates
" from the mid-nineteenth century. North of the mill, the oldest surviving dwellings
are small cottages, probably occupied by mill workers and local artisans. Later build-
ings in this neighborhood tend te be a combination of very small houses and larger
. late nineteenth-century frame buildings. —

As with many Small towns, some substantial residents preferred to live at the edges of
the settlement. In Scottsville, houses such as Mount Walla and Cliffside (not within

the corporate limits), situated on the hills surrounding the village, bear witness to

the survival of this tradition in the nineteenth-century Virginia Piedmont.

‘Present~day Scottsville consists of about 100 major buildings. Despite the effects of
time and the ravages of several major floods, 53 structures of historie or architectural
significance survive. The only major intrusion consists ofa cleared area at the junction
of Valley and Main Streets, the result of a fire in February 1976, which destroyed a
turn-of~the~century frame hotel and several minor buildings and which seriously damaged
the Methodist Church. The integrity of the district nevertheless remains intact.

T,

An inventory of the 53 significant Scottsville structures follows.

{(See continuation sheet #2 )
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The town of Scottsville, located on the great Horseshoe Bend of the James River in lower
Albemarle County, is a community rich in historical associatiocns and early architecture.
Lts history is inseparably entwined with its riverside situation; the James has brought
the town both prosperity and suffering. While many of Piedmont Virginia's river settle-
ments have either dwindled into insignificance or grown at the expense of their histori-
cal ambiance, Scottsville, in spite of prosperity, depression, war, flooding, and fire,
has maintained its early aura, Lining its two principal streets, Main and Valley, is a
notable representation of ante~ and post-bellum commercial architecture, a rarity for
Virginia towns. Interesting examples of either sophisticated or vernacular domestic
work are found on its residential streets. Set snugly beneath the river bluffs, amid
the Piedmont's scenic rolling countryside, Scottsville presents a memorable picture of
an essentially nineteenth-century river town.

The origins of Scottsville are traced back to 1732 when Edward Scott, Goochland County
Magistrate, Sheriff, and Burgess, patented 550 acres in the upper northwest corner of
Horseshoe Bend, on a hill just west of the future town, and erected a dwelling soon after.
Because of its strategic location on the river, Scott's house (an early dwelling thought
to be it survives) became a meeting place for the area. In 1741 the govermment of the
newly formed Albemarle County was organized there. Scott's Landing, as the small settle-
ment that sprang up there was called, was selected as the county seat of Albemarle

which included what today is five counties, It was so chosen because it was roughly in
the geographical center of this large political division, and a courthouse and jail were
ordered to be erected on the hill next to Scott's house. The courthouse and jail do not

- survive. The town, which grew down on the riverbank, soon boasted ordinaries, stables,

stores, and a grist mill., A blow to this prosperity was felt in 1762 when Albemarle
County was partitioned into several counties, The area south of the James became Buck-
ingham County, leaving Scott's Landing tucked in a distant corner of the resulting
smaller Albemarle. Because it no longer was in the geographical center, the county seat
was moved north to Charlottesville, While the county governmment removed some of the
town's prestige, Scott's Landing remained a growing commercial center. '

During the Revolution, military supplies were stored at Scotlt's Landing in the former
courthouse. The arms were in a quantity sufficient to attract the attention of Lord
Cornwallis, To keep the stores from falling into enemy-hands, General- Lafayette took

up position between Cornwallis and the town, forcing Cornwallis to change his front,
With hope of capturing the supplies lost, Cornwallis moved toward the coast with Lafayette
in pursuit, Cornwallis's shift to the east ultimately led to his being surrounded at
Yorktown,

~The Post-Revolutionary and Ante-Bellum pexiods mark the age of Scottsville's ascendancy

as a commercial center, a period of prosperity brought on by.increased river traffic and
the construction of the James River and Kanawha Canal. A number of other towns sprang
(See continuation sheet # 8)
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6. REPRESENTATION TN EXISTING SURVEYS

(2} Hiséoric‘American Buildings Survey Inventory
1957 Federal
Library of Congress, Washington, D. C.

10. VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The boundaries of Scottsville Historic District coincide with the corporate limits
of the town. The 115 acres comprising the district are bounded by a line

beginning at a peint 200' W of Town Route 1302 and 500" NW of intersection of
said route with Town Route 1304
Thence extending approximately 1100 NE;

Thence extending approzimately 1400' SE;

(; Thence extending approximately 2200' due E;

Thence extending approximately 1600' S and slightly E te north back of James
River;

Thence extending NW and curving along riverbank approximately 3200';
Thence extending approximately 2600' NW to peint of origin,

The corporate limits of the town have remained the same since the eastern

boundary was extended in 1833 to incorporate the Fluvanna County portion of
the community.
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Scottsville Inventory

Note: Scottsville buildings do not have numbered street addresses.

Bird Street
South side

‘/\ Scottsville Presbyterian Church: brick, 2 stories, 3 bays, pedimented gable
q% roof with small belfry at east end.. Greek Revival, built 1830. Scottsville
Q/ Presbytexrian Church, with its fine brickwork and its handsome, well-preserved
interior, is the earllest and least-altered of .Scottsville's five n1neteenth~

J{%‘}J\? century churches. : : : .

Canal Street

% Scottsville Railroad Station: brick, 1 story, 6 bays, hipped roof with cross
/l)/ ) Y
gable, deeply projecting eaves, sheltered passenger platform, Circa 1900,

q),ébPTeight Depot: - warehouse: frame, 1 story, 3 bays, 'ecatslide'" gable roof,
qﬁ\ board-and-batten covering. Late nineteenth century.,

Harrison Street
West side (south to north) .

pVE 0ld Hall: dwelling: Flemish-bond brick, 2 stories, 3 bays, gable roof with
qfﬁg _ interior end chimneys, tetrastyle Doric porch with full entablature, triple
: windows. Greek Revival, built 1830, 0OLld Hall is one of Scottsville's most
elabofate early nineteenth-century dwellings.

%{\% St. _John's Episcopal Church: frame with board and batten, 1 story, gable roof
qg\ with sawn bargeboards, belfry, entrance porch. Gothic Revival, built 1875,

The Shadows: dwelling: frame, 2 stories, 3 bays, gable roof, tetrastyle Roman

ff*’ \‘ Doric porch, exterior end chimney, later demi-octagonal bay at north end.
ﬁﬂ - - Becond. quartexr of nincteenth century,

GPO 832 A5S
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Harrison Street (Cont'd.)

West side (south to north)

QD,QJ Qmohundro House: dwelling: brick, 2 stories on high basement, 3 bays, gable
Mﬂ 'Li roof with box cornice and interior end chimneys, tetrastyle Roman Doric porch.
f&’{ Second quarter of mineteenth century. '

b& Bruce House: dwelling: brick, 1 story on high basement, 5 bays, gable roof
dﬁ’\d with interior end chimneys, tetrastyle Roman Doric pedimented portico, elaborate
: side-and fanlight doorway. Second quarter of nineteenth century.

Scottsville Baptist Church: brick, 2 stories, gable roof with belfry, heavily

altered by addition of tetrastyle portico, later windows, baptistry. Built
1840,

\{f
u,@, 15\

Harrison Street
(l East side

‘ \_ Double Cottage: dwellings: brick, 1 stoxy on high basement, 4 bays, gable
Zfﬂg‘l' roof with central chimney, tetrastyle porch, windows altered. Second quarter
of nineteenth century. : :

Jackson Street
North side (west to east)

v~ Tompkins House: dwelling: brick, 1 story on hi h basement 3 bays, gable roof
T y )
1&“%' with altered semi~exterior end chlmneys tetrastyle Greek Dorlc porch, ends and
gable reworked. Greek Revival, second quarter of nineteenth century.

Dwelling: frame, 2 stories,. irregular plan and bay systems, gable and hipped
@’1f\ ?7 roof, projecting bays, square corner tower, l-story porch on south and west--with
Qfﬂ elaborate spindle frieze. Elements of Queen Anne, Frangois 1T and Fastlake
styles, late nineteenth century. '

: 4&,¢& Dwelling: frame, 2 stories with later l%-~story fagade, gable roof with exterior
9V ; \ Bab :
] end chimney, l-story porch with sawnwork balustrade, Mid-nineteenth century;
circa 1900,

- ' . .
%;v*’b Pwelling: frame, 2 stories, 3 bays, gable roof with exterior end chimney,
Qﬁa twventicth-century Georgian Revival porch., Second quarter of ninetcenth century.

GPD 832 455
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Main Street
South side (wést to east)

Coleman's Store and Masonic Hall: commercial building: brick, 2 stories, 4
%.th,[p _ bays, flat roof, pilastered bays and brick cornice., Modified Edwardian, built t

1914‘n . . ° ) 3

1 Commercial structure: frame, 2 storles, 3 bays, mansard roof with central gable,
’ka' original shop front. Early twentieth century.

8 Comhercial structure: frame, 2 stories, 3 bays (first floor), gable roof with
1;¥~ gable end front, Built circa 1900, The building has been enlarged to the east
Zﬂg' and the facade has been altered. ' : :

_ Dwelling with projecting commercial wing: frame, 2 stories, irregular bay
é»fq P g
Py system, gable roof--gable end front on commercial wing, l-story porch on dwelling

Zﬂg section, original shop front on commercial wing. FEarly twentieth century.
(; 4~f0 Commercial structure: frame, 2 stories, 2 bays, gable roof with gable end front,
-2 shop front altered. Early twentieth century.

“}) Commercial structure: frame, 2 stories, gable roof with gable end front, box

O v cornice, l~story lean-to addition on east, early 6/9 sash. Early nineteenth
century. Building is a rare example of a simple commercial structure of its
period,

. SH1 Dwelling: frame, 1% stories, 3 bays, gable roof with box cornice, exterior end
. 9%,1&4' chimney, I-story attached kitchen. Early nineteenth century. House is a

2 picturesque and well-preserved example of Scottsville's early domestic archi-
tecture; it retains distinctive interior woodwork.

-12-Dwelling: frame, 1 story, 3 bays, gable roof, exterior end chimneys, later
2 ) b4 ’ Y8,
- front porch. Mid-nineteenth century. .

“;\\ Scottsville Flour Mill: frame, 3 stories, gable roof with woniter, gable end
N front, 2-story frame annex to east. Late nineteenth century., Mill remains in

v operation. DEMORIHES

% Dwelling: frame, 2 stories, gable roof, l-story front porch with turned posts.

Zﬂg'iA’i Built circa 1%00.

z}*,FLDuplex dwelling: frame, 2 stories, gable rocf with gable end fromt, 4-~bay
. ‘Zﬁg’ first floor, 2-bay second floor. Early twentieth century.
(ww é\J;%torehouse: frame, 1 story, gable roof, 3 bays, center door with flanking
1ﬂ%‘L shuttered openings, later addition on rear. Late nineteenth century.

GPO 892 455
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Main Streat _
‘North side (west to east) .

i o

/b"\% XV

4,"\%'@

" Scottsville Methodist Church: brick, 2 stories, facade originally 3 bays, gable

roof; present facade erected in 1927 completely covering original facade. Orig-
inal portion built 1833 and severely damaged by fire in 1976,

Scottsville Museum: church building: brick, Flemish bond, 1 story, 3 bays,
gable roof with pedimented gable front, lunettes with intersecting tracery above
each facade opening. Built 1846 as Disciples of. Christ Church; became Scotts-
ville Museum in 1968. Building shows Jeffersonian Classicism influence.,

Barclay House: brick, Flemish-bond facade, 2 stories, 3 bays, gable roof with X
corbeled brick cornice. Federal, built circa 1825. Home of Dr. James R. Barclay
in mid-nineteenth century; Barclay founded the adjacent Disciples Church, House
is one of the more picturesque dwellings in the community; it is part of the
museum complex,

Dwelling: frame, 1 story, 3 bays, gable roof, exterior end chimney, later front

poxrch and side wing. Early nineteenth century.

0ld Tavern: hostelry: brick, 1 story with later 2-story wing, 4 bays in orig-
inal section, 5 bays in later section, l-story front porch with lattice railing
on original section, 2~level porch with similar railings on later section.
Early and mid-nineteenth century. Now a residence, this is one of the more
architecturally significant structures in the town. It probably was built to
serve the canal trade,

Dwelling: frame, 2 stories, 3 bays,.gable roof, l-story front porch. Late
nineteenth century. .
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Valiéz,Stfeet
West side (south to north)

vg Skippy's Market (southwest corner of West Main and Valley Streets): cocmmer-
. ‘l cial structure: brick, 2 stories, 5 bays, flat roof, sheet metal modillion
Zﬂ _ cornice. Edwardian, early twentieth century.

Dorrier's Barber Shop (northwest corner of West Main and Valley Streets): com-
1L¥4ﬁ mercial structure: brick, 2 stories, 7 bays, gable roof with parapets at eaves
1ﬂg and gable ends, elaborate storefronts with Doric pllasterse Georgian Revival,
twentieth century,

20 Scottsville Mini-Mart: commercial structure: yellow brick, 2 stories, 4 bays,
%,24' flat roof, early metal storvefronts, brick pilasters mark bays. Edwardian,
’Zﬂ early twentieth century.

Thacker's Variety Shop:  commercial/residential row: brick, 2 stories, 7 bays,
tA gable roof with interior end chimneys and 2 dormers, later shop fronts, fan-
(;fﬂg light entrance to second-floor stairs. Second quarter of the nineteenth century.

Scottsville:- Furnlture (southwest corner of Valley and Bird Streets) commer-

ZA ,1* cial structure: brick, 2 stories, 9 bays, gable roof with gable-end parapets,

ﬁW% internal end chimneys and molded brick cornice. Second quarter of nineteenth
century.

Antique Shop (northwest cormer of Valley and Bird Streets): commercial/resi-
, ,2}5 dential row: brick, 2 stories, 1ll-bays, gable roof with interior end chimneys
ZﬂQVL' and molded brick cornice, later shop front, north end altered at first-floor
level, Second quarter of nineteenth century.

_’PL{Dwelling: brick, 2 stories, & bays, gabieuroof with interior end chimneys,
Zﬂ%»lf‘ 2 pedimented dormers. Second quarter of nineteenth century.

Dwelling: brick, 2 stories, 3 bays, gable roof with interior end chimney,
{’ central entrance and second-floor window closed. Second quarter of nineteenth

A
Qﬂ%/Li century.

' 1Au?1?Thackér Brothers Funeral Home: dwelling: frame, 2 stories, 3 bays, gable roof
g with shingled cross gables, L-plan. Late nineteenth century.

L fDwelling: frame, 2 stories, 3 bays, hipped rcof with cross gables, 2-stor orch

.’/4 & s 5 Y8, PP B Yy P

QQ’ on south and east sides, pedimented 2-story portico on east, Georgian Revival,
early twentieth century.

sl
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Valley Street (Cont'd.) - - . -
West side (south to north)

/qu Cottage: frame, 1 story, 4 bays, gable roof with exterior end flues. Late
%JV& nineteenth century. This is a noteworthy example of a worker's cottage of the
tﬂ end of the last century.

Valley Street
East side (south to north)

29 Scottsville Volunteer Fire Department: public building: brick, 2 stories,
qg 2}}' 1 bay, gable roof with gable-end entrance and parapet, Edwardian, early
e - _ twentieth century.

fronts), flat roof, design consonant with adjacent flre department building,

‘{ Dollar General Stores: commercial structure: brick, 2 stores, 12 bays (4 shop
1%
(;'Zg% some openings altered Early twentieth century.

;5[ Dwelling: frame, 2 stories, 3 Bays, gable roof with cross gable, full-length
zqgQL l-story porch with turned columns, an "I-house." Late nineteenth century.

G\’ Scottsville Mill (Westerm Auto): Industrial structure: brick on stuccoed
q/ stone, 3 stories, 6 bays, gable roof. Built circa 1835,

Cottage: frame, 2 stories, 2 bays, gable roof with exterior end chimney and
,y4’; bracketed cornice, l-story bracketed porch, lean-to addition to noxrth, Ital-
9 ianate, late nineteenth century.

5% Cottage: frame, 1 story, 3 bays, gable roof with exterior end chimney, full-
Zﬂg Q!l length l-story porch, :Second quarter of the nineteenth century,

4 Cottage (intersection of Valley and Hardwarce Streets): frame, 1 story, 4 bays,
4qgil gable roof with exterior end chimneys, stoop. Early nineteenth century.
& ) .

- Bluff above town to north

Mount Walla: dwelling: frame, 1 story on high basement, 3 bays, gable roof,
UQSY\ pedimented porch on either side, exterior end chimneys, l-story wings. Built circa
ﬁ/ 1780 for John Scott, a member of the fawily from whence the town derives its
name, The house is a good example of the mere sophisticated small farmhouses of
the region.

GPD 882 455
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up along the river and competed for Scottsville's trade, but few ever offered a serious
threat, - By 1818 the community had achieved sufficient importance to be incorporated,
and its official name became Scottsville. The town benefited not only from the east-
west traffic along the river but from the north-south traffic taking advantage of the
ferry there. 1In 1827 the Staunton and James River Turnpike, terminating at Scottsville,
was completed, opening Scottsville to trade with the Shenandoah Valley. Martin's '
Gazeteer of Virginia describes Scottsville as a lively place in 1838:

"This place has improved rapidly in the last 4 years, and is yet a flourishing
village. It contains 120 houses, chiefly of brick; one Methodist and one Presby-
terian house of worship; a male and a female school, and two Sunday schools, nine
general and five grocery stores, and one apothecaries shop. The principal manu-
factures are clothing, leather shoes, cabinet work, and earthenware. An inspec-
tion of flour and tobacco is established in this place, of the former the average
quantity . . . sold is 35,000 barrels. Scottsville carries on an extensive trade
in flour, bacon, butter, lard, and other products with the counties of Nelson,
Augusta, Rockbridge, Rockingham, Bath, Pendleton and Pocahontas; these products
are exchanged for groceries, gypsum, coarse cotton and woolen cloths and money.
The market of Scottsville is ready and tempting to the producer, the only fault
of its enterprising merchants being that they '--interesting sidelight--' pay
prices too liberal for their own prosperity, and this cause has, only lately,
given a temporary check to the rising town. A tri-weekly line of stages passed
through it, communicating with Richmond and Staunton, Scottsville, being situat-
ed at the extreme northwestern bend of the navigable water of the James River,
would probably acquire an immense increase of trade if the James and Kanawha im=-
provement is carried into effect. There is a Savings institution ‘'--bank--~' in
the town. It has two resident attornies and four regular physicians; its whole
population is about 600."

Since the late eighteenth century, various efforts had been made to improve navigation
on the Upper James., These efforts culminated in 1832 with the chartering of the James
River and Kanawha Canal Company, a company with the ambitious goal of linking Richmond
with the Ohio River. The goal was never achieved, but a splendid canal system was
constructed along the James as far west as the Alleghenies., The section through Scotts-
ville was officially opened in July 1840. The construction of the canal gave Scotts-
ville its golden era., The community became the largest flour market in the state; a-
correspondent writing in the 1850s mtedon a typical day the presence of seventy mountain
wagons waiting to be loaded, It was during this period that many of the existing com-
mercial and residential structures were erected. .

The Civil War precipitated Scottsville's slow but steady decline as a commercial center,
The community came into direct contact with the strugole in 1865 when Gemeral Philip
Sheridan with some 10,000 cavalry troops pillaged the town. Mlis primary goal was to

EPD 832 455




Formi No. i c-300a
{Rev. 10-74) }
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE :

FOR NPS USE ONLY

_NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
(: INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

30w

DATE ENTERED

 CONTINUATION SHEET 9 - ITEM NUMBER 8§ ~ “PAGE 2

SIGNIFICANCE (Cont'd.)

wreck the canal system. The Scottsville section was duly destroyed on March 6, and
nearly all the town's industrial buildings: the woolen factory, the candle factory,
the flour mill, etc, were burned.

The town recovered from the war, but it never again experienced the prosperity it
formerly had known. The canal company never regained its strength, and in 1880 its
property was sold to the Richmond and Alleghany Railroad which erected its tracks
on the towpath. ' '

In recent years, Scottsville has seen little significant growth, Though served by
the railroad, the James River valley is no longer the state's main commercial artery.
This lack of commercial activity, however, has been one of the prime factors in the
preservation of the town's historical character. This atmosphere, and indeed the
very existence of the town, was threatened in the past decade by two severe floods.
The first, in 1969, came as the result of Hurricane Camille; the second, equally
severe, was brought by Hurricane Agnes in 1972, So crippling were the floods that

(; some thought was given to abandoning the lower part of the town altogether, but this
idea was dismissed, and a slow but steady recovery has been made. In 1976 two fires,
within days of one another, destroyed a major commercial block in the heart of the
town, but except for heavy damage to the Methodist Church, mo buildings of architectural
significance were lost. Through it all, Scottsville, with a keen awareness of his
history, has demonstrated a tenacity and a will to survive.
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